m No. 10-300 (Rev. 10-74)

UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR NATIONAL PARK SERVICE

JATIONAL REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES INVENTORY -- NOMINATION FORM

P	H	0	6	6	5	7	D	YT.	A	SF	IEE	Ľ
FC	NR N	IPS	USE	ON	LY							

MAR 2 8 1978 RECEIVED

DATE ENTERED SEA 378

SEE INSTRUCTIONS IN HOW TO COMPLETE NATIONAL REGISTER FORMS **TYPE ALL ENTRIES -- COMPLETE APPLICABLE SECTIONS**

NAME 1

HISTORIC

The Bailey House

AND/OR COMMON

2 LOCATION

STREET & N	UMBER			
	1600 Ogden Stre	et	NOT FOR PUBLICAT	ION
CITY, TOWN	l		CONGRESSIONAL	DISTRICT
	Denver	VICINITY OF	1	
STATE		CODE	COUNTY	CODE
	Colorado	08	Denver	031

3 CLASSIFICATION

CATEGORY	OWNERSHIP	STATUS	PRES	ENTUSE
DISTRICT		X_OCCUPIED	AGRICULTURE	MUSEUM
BUILDING(S)		UNOCCUPIED	XCOMMERCIAL	PARK
	BOTH	WORK IN PROGRESS	EDUCATIONAL	PRIVATE RESIDEN
SITE OBJECT	PUBLIC ACQUISITIO		ENTERTAINMENT	RELIGIOUS
_OBJECT		YES: RESTRICTED		SCIENTIFIC
	BEING CONSIDERED	YES: UNRESTRICTED		TRANSPORTATIO
		NO	MILITARY	OTHER:
OWNER O	FPROPERTY			
Mr.	Robert_Knox			1
STREET & NUMBER				
1500) Ogden Street			
CITY, TOWN	1. .		STATE	
Den	ler	VICINITY OF	Colorado	
LOCATIO	N OF LEGAL DES	CRIPTION		
COURTHOUSE,				
REGISTRY OF DEEDS	S, ETC. Office of the	Clerk and Recorder		
STREET & NUMBER				
	City and Cour	nty Building 14th	and Bannock Street	:s
CITY, TOWN			STATE	
	ler		Colorado	

The Denver Inventory DATE __FEDERAL __STATE __COUNTY Y_LOCAL 1973 DEPOSITORY FOR SURVEY RECORDS The Denver Planning Office CITY, TOWN

Denver

STATE Colorado

7 DESCRIPTION

CON	DITION	CHECK ONE	CHECK (DNE
XEXCELLENT	DETERIORATED	X_UNALTERED		SITE
G00D	RUINS	ALTERED	MOVED	DATE
FAIR	UNEXPOSED			

DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

The Bailey house was built upon an "earthen. platform" about 6 feet above the sidewalk, as were most houses in Denver built for the middle and upper-middle classes in the late 19th century.

In October, 1889, the <u>Mestern Architect and Building News</u> carried a description of the Bailey house: "Stone residence for G.M. Bailey on Ogden St., to cost \$30,000. Built of buff Longmont sandstone, with trimmings of blue Longmont. The parlors, library, and hall are finished in butternut; the dining room in antique oak; the chambers and upper halls are finished in satin-wood, birds-eye maple, and black ash; bathroom fitted with porcelain tub and open fixtures. All work throughout the house of the best description."

The rusticated stone which Lang used on the outside of the Bailey house and the stone belt courses are marks of the Richardsonian style of architecture, as are the contrasting stone textures along the base of the building and in the lintels over the windows. Some of the windows of the building are arched; however, these are not the Syrian arches typical of Richardsonianism. The Richardsonian style was a movement toward simplicity in architecture and the Bailey house cannot, be said to follow this philosophy. It is rather of the eclectic style typical of Lang, though because of the size of the building it is somewhat muted in comparison to others of his buildings.

The massing of the house is Queen Anne, with its irregularity and complicated roof forms. Most of the architectural details are also of the Queen Anne style, and they are many: bay windows, round tower-topped by a rounded roof, pent roof at the gables, and half-timbering on the south gable. The cantilevered gable on the north facade is a Queen Anne characteristic, but the bracketing supporting the gable and the brackets at each side of the west gable and under the gable of the south balcony are Italianate. Another interesting feature of the Bailey house is the use of transoms over many of the windows. This may have been influenced by the Chateauesque style. The pediments over the main entrance and over the south entrance are of the Greek Revival style. The house also has the

metal cresting along the roof peaks which was so typical of the Queen Anne style. The condition of the Bailey house today is generally good, although the

sandstone has begun to deteriorate in some sections -- especially between the 2nd and 3rd stories of the tower. The slate roof is also deteriorating and may be replaced by the owners in the near future.

The interior of the house has been changed a good deal and is now being used as offices, but the exterior seems not to have been altered.



PERIOD	Af	REAS OF SIGNIFICANCE CH	IECK AND JUSTIFY BELOW	
PREHISTORIC 1400-1499 1500-1599 1600-1699 1700-1799 X.1800-1899 1900-	ARCHEOLOGY-PREHISTORIC ARCHEOLOGY-HISTORIC AGRICULTURE ARCHITECTURE COMMERCE COMMUNICATIONS	community planning conservation X_economics education engineering exploration/settlement 	LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTURE LAW LITERATURE MILITARY MUSIC PHILOSOPHY POLITICS/GOVERNMENT	RELIGION SCIENCE SCULPTURE SOCIAL/HUMANITARIAN THEATER TRANSPORTATION OTHER (SPECIFY)
SPECIFIC DAT	res 1339-1890	BUILDER/ARC	HITECT	

STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The Bailey house is of historical value and worthy of preservation because of its significance in two areas primarily? architecture and economics.

The house was designed by William Lang, one of the most prominent and prolific architects of the prosperous period in Denver between about 1887 and 1893. His architecture mirrored the ebullient mood of the city in the period during which he was popular. The Bailey house is the largest of the houses designed by Lang to have survived.

The house was commissioned and first occupied by George W. Bailey, a man who, as a real estate agent and investor, was able to share in the prosperity of those years of growth and optimism in Denver, but who, like William Lang, suffered badly from the silver panic of 1893 and never fully recovered financially afterwards.

William Lang came to Denver from Chicago, Illinois. The first record of his career was in the 1886 Denver Directory in which he placed an advertisement for his services as an architect. He was a charter member of the Colorado Chapter of the American Institute of Architects. The most complete record concering William Lang, however, is in the buildings he designed. He was responsible for many residences in the Capitol Hill area. In 1890 the <u>Mestern Architect and Building News</u> listed 43 houses designed by Lang and Marshall Pugh, his partner. Lang designed a 6-story downtown office building, the Ghost Block and St. Mark's Church on Lincoln, but he was best known for his designs of residences - both single homes like the Bailey house and row houses, some examples of which stand on Washington Street between 17th and 18th Avenues.

Lang and Pugh had available to them in periodicals many models of architectural styles from all over the country. They used elements from these many styles to produce designs which were usually skillfully-executed studies in architectural complexity and diversity. This style of architecture is called the eclectic style, and William Lang is considered to have been one of the best eclectic architects in the United States.

Denver began to experience a construction boom in late 1887. The city was prosperous and growing quickly, and Lang's designs were well-received in Denver by the new upper middle class. His architecture was lively; it reflected the spirit of the time; and he used the finest materials, displayed in an obvious manner, a practice which suited well the prosperous owners of his homes.

The original owner of the Bailey house, George W. Bailey, like William Lang, came to Denver from Illinois. He had fought in the Civil War from 1361 to 1865, attended Illinois College, and became a faculty member there after his graduation. He was an instructor at Illinois College for 13 years, until his move to Denver in 1832. In 1883 he and James R. Hicks formed a partnership. Their real estate firm was agent for the Highland Park Co. of Colorado Springs, which had large Denver and vicinity real estate holdings. Hicks and Bailey became involved in the development of Short's

9 MAJOR BIBLIOGRAPHICAL REFERENCES

Brettell, Richard B. <u>Historic Denver: The Architects and the Architecture,</u> <u>1853-1393</u>. Historic Denver, Inc. Denver, 1973.

. <u>History of Colorado</u>. The I. J. Clarke Publishing Co., Chicago, 1913. V. II. pp. 810-812.

10 GEOGRAPHICAL DATA

ACREAGE OF NOMINATED PROPERTY _____ under one acre____

UTM REFERENCES

 A
 1.3
 5
 0.2
 2.3.5
 4.3
 9.8
 9.0.0
 B

 ZONE
 EASTING
 NORTHING
 ZONE
 EASTING
 NORTHING

 C

VERBAL BOUNDARY DESCRIPTION

Lots 22 & 23, Block 24, Park Avenue Addition

	COUNTIES FOR PROPER	RTIES OVERLAPPING	STATE OR COUNTY BOUN	IDARIES
STATE	CODE	COUNTY		CODE
STATE	CODE	COUNTY		CODE
1 FORM PREPARED	BY			
Diane Brower				
ORGANIZATION			DATE	
Historic Den	ver		October 17, 19	77
STREET & NUMBER	······		TELEPHONE	
770 Pennsylv	ania Street		837-1858	
CITY OR TOWN		<u> </u>	STATE	
Denver	i .	CO	lorado	·····
	UATED SIGNIFICANCE O.	TE		
NATIONAL	517	\ L.		
As the designated State Historic F hereby nominate this property fo criteria and procedures set forth b STATE HISTORIC PRESERVATION OF	Preservation Officer for the r inclusion in the National ry the National Park Servic FFICER SIGNATURE	National Historic Pres Register and certify t		according to the

tarm No. 10-300a (Rev. 10-74)

UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR NATIONAL PARK SERVICE

NATIONAL REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES INVENTORY -- NOMINATION FORM

FOR NPS L	JSE ONLY	-
100 A.		
RECEIVED	MAR 2 8 1978	
	SEP 1 8 1978	
DATE ENTI	ERED	

CONTINUATION SHEET Significance ITEM NUMBER 3 PAGE 2

electric railway on 15th Street. The development of this railway contributed to 15th Street eventually becoming the main thoroughfare of the business district. They also were part of a syndicate to build and operate the University Park railway, which led to the increased growth of Denver's south side.

Lang built Bailey's home at 1600 Ogden in 1889-1890. The building permit was taken out on September 11, 1889. An October 1839 issue of the <u>Western Architect and Building News</u> described the house. Bailey probably moved into it some time in 1890. Hicks and Bailey continued as a successful business until 1893. "Then came the silver panic, bringing widespread disaster to banks and all business concerns... Foreclosures of real estate became a daily feature of the business at the courthouse, rendering any but forced purchases practically impossible. "George Bailey remained in the real estate business, but the indication is that after the panic he was never again as successful. He "... continued in a quiet and unassuming way to serve such friends and clients as they came to him." The Master Property Book for the Park Avenue area shows Laura R. Struby as the owner of 1600 Ogden in 1895, so it appears that at that time Bailey found it necessary to sell his home.

The panic of 1893 was brought about by the decline of the price of silver and by the many related factors which caused this decline; "over-expansion and overinvestment in the nation's railroads; a continuing agricultural depression; the collapse of British investments in the United States."

Mines and smelters in Colorado were shut down and thousands of workers from these places drifted into Denver. The resulting fear and unrest they created compounded the decline in morale which had come about as a direct result of the silver crash. The widespread loss of optimism in Denver which was the result of the silver panic also brought about a gradual shift from the expansive, exuberant architectural styles popular here, to the more conservative buildings which make up the bulk of the residential areas built in Denver after that time.

With the decline in the popularity of eclectic architecture came the decline in William Lang's fortunes. Lang suffered much psychologically from the failure of his business. He returned to Illinois in hopes that the change would improve his health, but in August, 1897, he was struck by a train in Marseilles, Illinois, and killed. This had followed a 2-week period when he had dropped out of sight after leaving his brother's home in Englewood, Illinois. The August 22, 1897, edition of the <u>Rocky Mountain News</u>, which carried the story of his death, attributed his death to "nervous prostration" and mental failure, brought about by the ruin of his business.

The Bailey house has had a number of owners and occupants in the years since George Bailey lived there. During the late 1930's it was a doctors' clinic. After that it was converted into a restaurant, the Tiffin Dining Room. Today it is occupied by Intra Search, a geological research firm.

NATIONAL REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES INVENTORY -- NOMINATION FORM

FOR NPS U	SE ONLY
RECEIVED	MAR
DATE ENTE	RED <u>Step (1)</u>

CONTINUATION SHEET Bibliography ITEM NUMBER 9 PAGE 2

The Rocky Mountain News. Denver. August 22, 1897.

Ubbelohde, Carl. <u>A Colorado History</u>. Pruett Press, Inc., Boulder, 1965. p. 218.